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1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA WEDNESDAY, JUNE 4, 2014 

2 PRO C E E DIN G S 

3 (PROCEEDINGS BEGIN AT 09:16:54 AS FOLLOWS:) 

4 

5 THE COURT: In the matter of the Nelson matter, case 

6 number D-411537. We'll get everyone's appearance for the 

7 record. We'll start we'll go right to left, I guess. 

8 Easier for the court reporter-- maybe we'll go left to right. 

9 MR. SOLOMON: It's your right. 

10 THE COURT: There you go. Mr. Solomon, sir 

11 MR. SOLOMON: I'm sorry. All right. I'll start. 

12 Mark SOLOMON, bar number 418, on behalf of the distribution 

13 trustee of the ELN trust. 

14 MR. LUSZECK: Jeff Luszeck, bar number 9619 on 

15 behalf of the distribution trustee of the ELN trust. 

16 MS. FORSBERG: Good morning, Your Honor. Rhonda 

17 Forsberg, 9557, on behalf of Eric Nelson, who is present to my 

18 right. 

19 THE COURT: Good morning, Mr. Nelson. 

20 MR. NELSON: Good morning. 

21 THE COURT: Okay. 

22 MS. PROVOST: Good morning, Your Honor. Katherine 

23 Provost, bar number 8414. And seated to my left, Joseph 

24 Karacsonyi, bar number 10634, and Robert Dickerson, bar number 
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1 945, present with Lynita Nelson, who is all the way down at 

2 the end of the table on my left. 

3 THE COURT: Good morning, Ms. Nelson, as well. This 

4 is the time set for the Court's determination as to the 

5 Wyoming Downs property, and also to address some of the other 

6 issues. I did get -- I think it was faxed, a courtesy copy to 

7 the Court from Mr. Solomon's office, with a status report and 

8 request for stay pending entry of final decree of divorce. I 

9 assume counsel's got a copy of that so we can address that 

10 appropriate if we have everybody here. 

11 I have reviewed the testimony and the documents that 

12 were admitted into evidence, and they are with -- with this 

13 case -- the real issue on this case is Wyoming Downs. The 

14 Court was concerned, as I said several times on there, there's 

15 the information to this Court and the very litigious matter on 

16 that was trying to get sufficient information to make 

17 decisions that are fair and just in accordance with the law. 

18 I felt I did not have that at the time of the decree last June 

19 3rd as to Wyoming Downs. I had some concerns about if how 

20 it was purchased, due to the fact that we had a motion to 

21 release money to purchase it, and the Court denied that. Then 

22 it was purchased, and I noticed that that motion to release 

23 that money was I think a week or so after the property was 

24 even purchased, or at least an agreement to purchase that. 
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1 So I had some concerns, so I wanted to make sure 

2 that I felt I had information. My concern in this case, this 

3 Court, in the interest of what I felt was both the parties 

4 interests to try to protect the assets from creditors, and 

5 give them the benefit of the spendthrift trust. Court went to 

6 great efforts through the divorce decree to try to maintain 

7 that in fairness to the parties, and to protect assets from 

8 creditors, yet looked at the issues of the equity, principals, 

9 to family matters through divorce, and also the fairness as 

10 far as a different constructive trust (indiscernible) to try 

11 to do fair and just for the parties and equity, as well. I 

12 looked at this property. 

13 I think it's -- as far as the purchase. I did look 

14 at the exhibits, and the promissory note. It's clearly 

15 noticed that this property was purchased between on or about 

16 November 16th, 2011, through the Dynasty Development and 

17 Management, LLC, and it looked like they would start with a 

18 $75,000 earnest money loan from BanOne. Looked like the 

19 purchase price was $400,000 with a 40,000 buyer's premium. 

20 The Court had denied the release of those proceeds from the 

21 1.568, which I think had been enjoined. And it looked like 

22 the property sought other lenders. Looks like it was financed 

23 through Henderson Capital, a hard money lender, basically debt 

24 financed. Looking at the testimony in the promissory note, 
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1 looks like a promissory note of 700,000 was acquired on or 

2 about January 4th, 2012, on that $700,000 proceeds. 

3 There was a $400,000 price, 40,000 buyer's premium, 

4 about $30,839 in settlement charges, 10,000 for an extension 

5 fee as they could not pay that within the 12 months, which 

6 came out to about 480,839. Of that $700,000 loan, 100,000 was 

7 taken off the top for prepayment of fees and interest, so 

8 basically about 600,000 then was lent out. There was a 

9 $75,000 deposit from the BanOne earnest money, and $175 I 

10 think and 46 cents for taxes, which came out to a total of 

11 about 675,175.46. And if you subtracted the 480,839 in the 

12 costs, it came out to about 194,336.46 as equity you were able 

13 to pullout. According to Mr. Nelson, out of those proceeds, 

14 they -- they repaid the earnest money to BanOne, the 75,000. 

15 So basically, according to the testimony of Mr. Nelson that 

16 there was new money, about 119,336.41. So that's kind of how 

17 the financing went from this Court with the numbers. 

18 The real issue on this is was this community 

19 property, and therefore, Ms. Lynita or the -- would have an 

20 interest. The parties were married, of course, at the time. 

21 The concern I had in this Court is the trust, that this Court 

22 did maintain the integrity of the trust. It was clear from 

23 the testimony the parties from the trial that the parties 

24 intended to have the trust maintain that, and from this 
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1 Court's finding for the intent to con -- to protect from third 

2 party creditors, so I tried to give that protection, and then 

3 do equity as I thought was fair, based on some of the 

4 transactions, which I thought was properties being transferred 

5 from the LSN trust, the ELN trust for the benefit of the ELN 

6 trust, and to the detriment of LSN trust. So I tried to deal 

7 that with equity principals of constructive trusts, and things 

8 like that, so I could maintain the trusts for the protection 

9 from the creditors, while also doing fair. 

10 I thought there were some violations of fiduciary 

11 duties by Mr. Nelson as a spouse in those transactions, also 

12 as investment trustee from Ms. Lynita, as that was spelled out 

13 in the divorce decree. I didn't have those equity issues in 

14 this case. (Indiscernible) equity issues on that since these 

15 proceedings, and with the protracted litigation, Ms. Lynita 

16 was not taking advice from Mr. Nelson any more, and they were 

17 keeping those trusts separate and distinct at least from that 

18 point, due to the fact of the pending divorce, so I didn't 

19 have those equity principals of constructive trust, fiduciary 

20 breaches of a spouse, or investment trustees. So I didn't 

21 have those equity principles here. 

22 So what it came down to was is this community 

23 property, because they were married, and anything acquired 

24 during marriage presumed to be community property. 
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1 Nelson has filed a custody motion pursuant to the 

2 One-Judge/One-Family rule. That's--

3 MS. FORSBERG: I called both departments to make 

4 sure and both departments --

5 MS. PROVOST: They 

6 MS. FORSBERG: -- said that it's supposed to be 

7 moved -- your -- your department double checked Laurie I 

8 double checked with Laurie and I double checked with them. 

9 They said it seems that --

10 MR. NELSON: (Indiscernible) get out of here. 

11 MS. FORSBERG: -- the other departme~t can handle 

12 that you want to be done with it. That's what I was advised. 

13 And it's a simple matter 

14 THE COURT: Noone talked to me. 

15 MS. FORSBERG: between the other department. 

16 THE COURT: Maybe my staff once they get done with 

17 it, I'm not so sure. 

18 MS. PROVOST: I would say pursuant to 

19 One-Judge/One-Family I don't see any sense in these parties 

20 having to start and -- and raise 

21 MS. FORSBERG: Well, they're going to have to always 

22 do this 

23 

24 

lvIS. PROVOS T : issues in front of another judge. 

MS. FORSBERG: -- until Carli gets to be 18. So 
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1 this is a Carli in your department. I called your department, 

2 Your Honor. 

3 THE COURT: Okay. 

4 MS. FORSBERG: So we'd like it to stay where it's 

5 at. 

6 THE COURT: Okay. Well, let me check. Noone told 

7 me about that. So I'll check. But that's been set for 

8 January? 

9 MS. PROVOST: It's set on January 7th right now in 

10 Department L which that judge has absolutely --

11 THE COURT: Are you 

12 MS. PROVOST: -- no knowledge of these parties or 

13 any of the issues or the history of this case, so I mean, the 

14 Eighth JUdicial District does have a One-Judge/One-Family 

15 policy. 

16 MS. FORSBERG: And that's why I specifically called 

17 to --

18 THE COURT: Yeah. 

19 MS. FORSBERG: ask her to --

20 THE COURT: Let met check. Somebody might have 

21 noone talked to me about that, so it might have been JEAs that 

22 sat there and figured that. 

23 MS. FORSBERG: And I talked to Laurie so the Court 

24 understands. 
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1 THE COURT: -- with the juvenile, yes, my JEA would 

2 my juvenile think -- figured that I probably had enough on 

3 my plate, but let me look at that because we got the history. 

4 As far as all the issues on the -- the custody, you guys had 

5 resolved that early on. That wasn't really 

6 MS. PROVOST: Yeah, apparently --

7 THE COURT: -- too con ten tions, but 

8 MS. PROVOST: -- there's a modification request. 

9 But we would want that heard by this Court, Your Honor. I 

10 mean, it makes zero sense for these parties to be litigating 

11 in two different departments. 

12 THE COURT: Let me check that with Judge -- Judge --

13 MS. FORSBERG: Yeah, we can tie you forever to this 

14 case, Your Honor. I don't think that was your intent either. 

15 THE COURT: I think that's what's hap I think 

16 that's what's happening I'll -- as far as that, do you have 

17 can you itemize which -- which properties have leveraged that 

18 are -- that the Court awarded to Ms. Lynita pending the thing 

19 and how much are leveraged for and what you're doing to doing 

20 it? Because as long as you're unwinding them, I'm fine just 

21 as long as they know. That's all they want to know so they 

22 can--

23 MR. KARACSONYI; If we have a due date, a reasonable 

24 due date. 

D-09-411537-D NELSON 10/21/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED) 

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356 

54 

AAPP 5341



1 MR. NELSON: It's the -- it's the -- was the house 

2 is here in Nevada --

3 THE COURT: Which house? 

4 MR. NELSON: Excuse me? 

5 MS. PROVOST: All of the Ban One (ph) properties. 

6 MR. NELSON: The Nevada Ban One properties that my 

7 trust owned I leveraged. And I'm deleveraging them. And the 

8 Russell Road property which I'm deleveraging that. The -- in 

9 December I think I gave you a full report on that. That would 

10 be deposited at those areas there. 

11 Now remember, the State Supreme Court ruled those 

12 are still mine. So I'm not being able to manage anything, I'm 

13 having to sell everything to do that. So I think if I have 

14 more --

15 MS. PROVOST: That's not what the state Supreme 

16 Court ruled. 

17 MR. NELSON: -- motions and more motions and more 

18 motions, Your Honor --

19 THE 

20 MR. 

21 THE 

22 you're saying 

23 MR. 

24 MR. 

COURT: This costs --

NELSON: -- this is just burying me. 

COURT; So basically it's the Nevada 

were leveraged and ones that 

NELSON: None of Lynita's. 

KARACSONYI: Russell Road. 
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MR. NELSON: Nothing of Lynita's. 

2 THE COURT: And the Russell Road is the 

3 MR. KARACSONYI: Everything we -- we're awarded from 

4 the trust I mean, do we have a time frame then for him to 

5 unleverage? 

6 MR. NELSON; I -- I leveraged none of Lynita's 

7 assets. 

8 MR. KARACSONYI: Well, Lynita --

9 MR. NELSON; I want to make that clear. 

10 MR. KARACSONYI: No. 

11 MR. NELSON: I didn't leverage any --

12 MR. KARACSONYI: Well, he --

13 MR. NELSON: of her stuff. 

14 MR. KARACSONYI: Be -- because this is a game --

15 this is a word game. 

16 MR. NELSON; Well, no. No. 

17 MR. KARACSONYI: He said that the supreme court has 

18 ruled that those are still his. No, the -- the supreme court 

19 hasn't ruled those are still his. The -- you have ruled those 

20 are hers 

21 THE COURT: And they're stayed 

22 MR. KARACSONYI: and that's the only order. So 

23 that's the -- so we just want to know -- I mean, Your Honor 

24 has made specific rulings -- I remember earlier today you said 
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well, you know, I'm not going to change anything up because 

2 I'm already -- feel good that we've already secured her 

3 assets. That's all we're trying to accomplish. Well, we 

4 don't know that. We can't rest assured that her assets are 

5 secure, because we don't -- nobody will provide us 

6 information. 

7 THE COURT: What does that ---

8 MR. KARACSONYI: We just want to know --

9 MS. FORSBERG: Just provide the information, Your 

10 Honor. 

11 THE COURT: When -- when's our hearing --

12 MR. KARACSONYI: That was the information -- well, 

13 thank you. 

14 THE COURT: When's our hearing in December? 

15 MS. PROVOST: There are no hearings pending Your 

16 Honor other than the January 7th hearing. 

17 

18 Wyoming 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

THE COURT: Well, then we have a trial set for a 

Downs 

MR. 

MS. 

THE 

THE 

THE 

MR. 

KARACSONYI: We have a December 11th 

FORSBERG: Yeah, December 11th, that 

COURT: December 11th is the trial? 

CLERK: December 11th at 1:30. 

COURT: That's for the Wyoming Downs? 

KARACSONYI: Yes. 
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1 THE COURT: What we're going to do, I'm going to 

2 want a full accounting for -- at the -- on -- what -- what day 

3 is that December 11th? I want to make sure so we get a time 

4 frame so we know exactly where we're at. 

5 MR. DICKERSON: It's a Wednesday. 

6 MS. PROVOST: It's a Wednesday. 

7 THE COURT: Just in case. So what's the Friday 

8 before? 

9 THE CLERK: The 6th. 

10 THE COURT: That way you got a couple times to look 

11 at it. The 6th. We're going to -- you requested by the trial 

12 date that's coming up a little bit over about two months. 

13 We'll have you provide an accounting of exactly how much is 

14 lever -- leveraged of the properties, how much is still owed 

15 leverages and what the policies for unwinding and see what 

16 type of time frame. That way I'll give you a time frame to 

17 have those unleveraged by a certain time. But that gives you 

18 a time to resolve it, give them a chance. And we're going to 

19 be here on December 6th. You can look at -- I mean, December 

20 11th. You can look at December 6th so you can address it 

21 before we start on December 11th if there's any --

22 MR. KARACSONYI: Thank you. 

23 THE COURT: issues you have or if there's any 

24 funny business going on, fair enough? 
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1 MS. FORSBERG: Thank you, Your Honor. 

2 THE COURT: Okay. 

3 MR. KARACSONYI: And that'll include actual backup 

4 documentation of the leveraging? 

5 THE COURT: Absolutely. The documents of what is 

6 leveraged with specified leverage, how much is leveraged, any 

7 documentation so they know and what's being to un --

8 unleverage them. 

9 MS. FORSBERG: Thank you, Your Honor. 

10 MR. NELSON: Which is fine, but I think we're 

]] focusing on what's left on the leveraging side of it by the 

12 11th. If -- if they're all deleveraged --

13 THE COURT: Yeah, if they're all deleveraged --

14 MR. NELSON: -- I mean, what am I going to --

15 produce this much documents? 

16 THE COURT: No. If they're all --

17 MR. NELSON: Okay. 

18 THE COURT: If there -- if there's 

19 MS. FORSBERG: If they're all 

20 THE COURT: no leverage on any of the properties, 

21 then they're fine with that. 

22 MR. KARACSONYI: And he'll make that representation 

23 in open court? 

24 MR. NELSON: Yes. 
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1 MS. FORSBERG: Yes. 

2 THE COURT: Yeah, we'll get it under oath and we'll 

3 get -- if you want all that, we will on that. 

4 MR. KARACSONYI: Okay. 

5 THE COURT: Okay. That way you know exactly what it 

6 looks like. That way we can address it before the December 

7 11th hearing if you think there's anything -- by that time 

8 maybe we'll have a decision from the supreme court. 

9 MS. FORSBERG: Thank you, Your Honor. 

10 THE COURT: All right. 

11 MS. FORSBERG: You're optimistic. 

12 THE COURT: I'm always optimistic. Thanks, 

13 everybody. 

14 (PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 14:34:09) 

15 * * * * * * 

16 ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and 

17 correctly transcribed the digital proceedings in the 

18 above-entitled case to the best of my ability. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Adrian N. Medrano 
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1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA MONDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2013 

2 PRO C E E DIN G S 

3 (THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 13:39:37) 

4 

5 THE COURT: This is the time set in the matter of 

6 Eric Nelson and Lynita Nelson, case number D-411537. Can we 

7 have everybody's appearance just for the record? We'll start 

8 with our Trust. 

9 MR. LUSZECK: Jeff Luszeck on behalf of the 

10 distribution trustee of the ELN Trust. 

11 THE COURT: Good to see you, Mr. Nelson. 

12 MS. FORSBERG: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Rhonda 

13 Forsberg, 9557, on behalf of Mr. Nelson. 

14 THE COURT: Thank you. 

15 MR. KARACSONYI: Josef Karacsonyi, 10634, with 

16 Katherine Provost, 8414, Bob Dickerson, 945, Ms. Nelson and 

17 Melissa Antanassio (ph). 

18 THE COURT: Good to see you again, Ms. Lynita. This 

19 was on the and all my paperwork laid out. We have a I 

20 guess a -- a couple issues. One was the motion for the to 

21 substitute in the distribution trustee and I guess the other 

22 issue was the money, the 1,068,000 about the trust fund. 

23 There was some concerns raises, but it was not placed -- it 

24 was placed in the count picked by the depart -- by the trust, 
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1 but not the input from the department -- I mean from the 

2 sorry, I just finished DFS all day, so I'm in department 

3 stuff. From Ms. Lynita's concern on that. That's with the 

4 mel -- and -- and that is basically Mr. Martin who has -- has 

5 some concerns on that. 

6 So I thought we could do that by telephone, but 

7 since we were corning up for this hearing, I figure we see if 

8 we get it resolved at this hearing since we have everybody 

9 here instead of setting up a -- a telephone conference to try 

10 to resolve it. 

11 This is your motion. I have read the motions and 

12 oppositions and the reply. Anything you want to add, update 

13 or highlight from the motion? 

14 MR. DICKERSON: We also have accounting issues that 

15 were -- it's non-calendar for today. 

16 THE COURT: Okay. Okay. As far as the motion for 

17 the -- I was concerned about your motion, because when I read 

18 the trust on there, it looks like Mr. -- Mr. Burr (ph) can 

19 make that determination and appoint it and it looks like your 

20 own motion said well, it was not necessary. They were coming 

21 to the court anyway. Mr. Burr can appoint and the trustee 

22 anyways with the notice -- 10 day notice and the concerns 

23 raised by Mr. Lynita Nelson's was that the fact that the --

24 Ms. Harbor (ph) is related and therefore would not fulfill the 
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1 requirement of being someone that under the IRS code 674 and 

2 that was their concern or a bank or trust company. So that 

3 was kind of the nut ln that. As far as did you concede the 

4 fact that it wasn't required for a court order to substitute 

5 in or --

6 MR. LUSZECK: Well, no. The whole -- our our 

7 position is still is I don't necessarily believe it is 

8 necessary, because NRCP 25C states in case of any transfer of 

9 interest, the action may be continued by or against the 

10 original party. Our position has always been that the 

11 interested party here is the distribution trustee. And albeit 

12 though the actual person who serves in that capacity may have 

13 changed, that office still remains a party to the case. 

14 The whole reason why we even moved was due to 

15 opposing counsel's stated concerns that, you know, perhaps a 

16 divorce decree wouldn't be able to be enforced against Nola 

17 (ph) Harbor who is -- is currently serving as the distribution 

18 trustee or that somehow the ELN Trust may continually change 

19 the distribution trustee from person to person to somehow to 

20 alleviate this Court's orders. So the sole purpose why we 

21 filed the motion to substitute was to alleviate those 

22 concerns. 

23 Obviously what we figured was going to be a pretty 

24 straightforward motion has turned into an opposition and a 
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countermotion to remove. As a practical matter, I -- I don't 

2 even see how this Court can hear their countermotion to remove 

3 the distribution trustee because they didn't abide by the 

4 notice requirements set forth in NRS 155.1 -- 010. I mean, 

5 anytime a petition of this magnitude is brought before any 

6 court sitting in probate, you have to give 10 days notice to 

7 all the interested parties. That here clearly wasn't done. 

8 Although the trust does reference IRC 1 -- or I'm 

9 sorry, 7 -- sorry, 764 

10 THE COURT: 764, yeah. 

11 MR. LUSZECK: We don't even get there because it's a 

12 grantor trust. The 764 only see -- only applies if it's a 

13 non-grantor trust. Here, the grantors of the trusts are taxed 

14 individually. So it's a grantor trust. You don't even get to 

15 IRC 764. And even if you did, that doesn't get you to where 

16 opposing counsel is getting with the definition of an 

17 independent trustee. 764 doesn't even define independent 

18 trustee. 764C, all that it does is it talks about exceptions 

19 for an independent trustee. So even if that is applicable, it 

20 -- it doesn't set forth and get to the point where opposing 

21 counsel is trying to get it with respect to having Ms. Harbor 

22 being unable to serve. 

23 Mr. Burr made that decision to appoint her as the 

24 distribution trustee. On November 22nd, 2010, Mr. BUrr stated 

0-09-411537-0 NELSON 10/21/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED) 
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356 

6 

AAPP 5293



1 in open court in conjunction with questions regarding Ms. 

2 Nelson's trust. Mr. Burr was asked so now can Lynita Nelson 

3 force you to change distribution trustee. Mr. Burr responded 

4 no. 

5 Mr. Burr was then asked okay, so you're an 

6 independent person. Mr. Burr said right. Then Mr. Burr was 

7 asked can Judge Sullivan order you to change distribution 

8 trustee in a forced order and Mur -- Mr. Burr responded no. 

9 And that's our position, Your Honor, is Mr. Burr has the 

10 authority to change as trust consultant, has the authority to 

11 change the distribution trustee. We do not believe that this 

12 Court has authority to do that and that's exactly what 

13 opposing counsel is seeking to do. 

14 THE COURT: Thank you. We'll do this issue first 

15 and we'll get on to other issues and address the accounting 

16 issues separately. 

17 MR. KAPACSONYI: Okay. Our position has been all 

18 along Your Honor that the trust formalities here have not been 

19 followed. They want to maintain the guise as we wrote in 

20 there and got called liars for it, but the guise of being an 

21 actual Nevada self settled spendthrift trust. But they don't 

22 want to follow their own trust provisions. 

23 This whole thing about we don't get to this IRC 

24 provision is ludicrous, because we get there in the expressed 
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1 language of the trust document. If you didn't need to get 

2 there or if it wasn't intended that anyone would go there, 

3 then there would have been no need to mention -- reference a 

4 section. There's only two possibilities, an individual who is 

5 an independent trustee pursuant to IRC Section 764, Nevada 

6 Bank & Trust Company. 

7 Perhaps their position is that the first section 

8 there is not applicable. Perhaps it's that an individual who 

9 is an independent trustee pursuant to IRC isn't appropriate in 

10 this case. Well, then there's only one other person, a Nevada 

11 bank or trust company. It doesn't say or any other person. I 

12 mean, that's their argument. It's as though they think we 

13 can't read. I mean, they -- they act as though nobody 

14 understands this stuff except the trust lawyers. 

15 Well, look, this is an expressed document. These 

]6 are expressed requirements. It's right there. It doesn't say 

17 or any other person. It doesn't say if IRC 674 is applicable 

18 which by the way, it's not because this is a grantor trust. 

19 We're just kind of putting this here superfluously. It 

20 doesn't say that. So those are the two options. 

21 Now they want to maintain the guise of being a valid 

22 trust. Then they should comply with their own trust 

23 documents. This Court has the right to protect the dignity of 

24 these proceedings by insisting that the actual -- that an 
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1 actual distribution trustee appear on their behalf. And they 

2 say well, we didn't give the notice requirement. Why should 

3 we be force to make them comply with their own trust? 

4 If they want to just stipulate to the fact which I 

5 think this Court has already found and again, they said we 

6 misrepresented, that this isn't a valid trust, at the last 

7 hearing you said that if this comes back, you may just 

8 invalidate the trust that your purpose was just to keep the 

9 trust as a faction just to protect the parties because you 

10 thought you could reach your -- the -- the relief that you 

11 ordered through other means. But of they want to maintain 

12 this facade, then they should be required to comply with the 

13 terms of their own trust. 

14 Now they say that well, the -- now they're referring 

15 to the office of the distribution trustee, this is a new 

16 argument. The -- all along from the start of this case when 

17 we've named the trust, they said you can't name a trust. You 

18 can't name -- you have to name an individual. They cited 

19 these cases, Cosi v. Carpenter (ph). It is well settled that 

20 a party to a litigation is -- is either a natural or an 

21 artificial person. So the original person continues the 

22 action unless the new party in interest is substituted on 

23 motion. 

24 So they're saying well, we don't need a motion to 
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1 substitute. Well, you absolutely need a motion to substitute, 

2 because otherwise Lana Martin is the party. Hey, you know, if 

3 you want to take your chances with the Nevada Supreme Court 

4 and say -- and -- and have them find that Nola Harbor has no 

5 standing, you could have taken your chances. Don't act like 

6 we made you bring this motion. We just pointed out the 

7 obvious that you were bringing the motion in the name of a 

8 party who is not even a party to the action. 

9 Now they say well, we should get attorney's fees. 

10 They may we did this to appease them and now they're saying 

11 we're doing it incorrectly. Look, you could have rolled the 

12 dice. The fact is they need this motion. They know they need 

13 this motion, because they're filing on behalf of somebody who 

14 was just a witness prior, somebody who wasn't even a party. 

15 This stuff about Jeffery (ph) Burr, Jeffery Burr 

16 doesn't have the ability, he said -- Jeffery Burr testified to 

17 all of us that you don't have the ability to make a change? 

18 Well, that's ridiculous. 

19 So under their interpretation of the law, a trustor 

20 -- a trust advisor can go ahead and violate all the terms of 

21 the trust agreement and just name any person in the world and 

22 there is not a court in this state that can do a thing about 

23 it. 

24 

I mean, that's basically the argument. 

You can't do anything about it, Judge. Well, we 
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1 pointed out you can do something about it, Judge. You can do 

2 what -- you can make them follow their own procedures and name 

3 a proper party to this action under all the authority we 

4 requested and under the basic fact that they're requesting a 

5 substitution and you have the right to have a proper party 

6 before you. 

7 So that's our arguments. I think we laid it all out 

8 in the opposition reply. If Your Honor has anymore questions 

9 about it, we're more than happy to address them. But 

10 otherwise, just responding to their -- their points. 

11 THE COURT: Thank you. Any quick rebuttal? 

12 MR. LUSZECK: Yeah, it's -- it's funny how they're 

13 accusing us of not file -- following the trust when they're 

14 not even following the most basic tenants of trust law with 

15 respect to notice of their parties. 

16 He keeps harping on 674. That's not what he's 

17 trying to apply. He's tried to apply IRC 672 which is not 

18 mentioned in the trust provision. Because of that, you can't 

19 just look to IRC 672 as opposed to 674 which is exactly what 

20 they're trying to do here. Jeffery Burr did testify that he 

21 did not believe that you can order change of distribution 

22 trustee in a forced order. That's what he testified to. I'm 

23 not making that up. Put it on Page 4 on my pleading. So it's 

24 our opinion that this Court does not have authority to do that 
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and that -- that needs to come from Jeffery Burr. 

2 MR. NELSON: And he did approve it. 

3 THE COURT: And I think he --

4 MR. LUSZECK: He did it. And he approved it. It's 

5 not -- it's not what the trustee did. It's -- Jeff Burr made 

6 this decision and he made that change. 

7 THE COURT: I think he also testified that he didn't 

8 file under rules and give people 10 day notice when he made 

9 changes in the past. 

10 MR. LUSZECK: Your Honor, that -- that's irrelevant 

11 though. But the distribution trustee knew that it was 

12 occurring. The distribution trustee is the only one that 

13 could object to that. She didn't object to it. 

14 THE COURT: Well well, you know, this case will 

15 go on and on and on as far as I'm going to deny the motion. 

16 Noone's asked for my input on this before. They move back and 

17 forth with distribution trustees from back and forth with Mr. 

18 Burr. He was under attack for not following the formalities. 

19 I made it real clear in my divorce decree that the supreme 

20 court -- depending what they do on that came back to me on a 

21 question for this Court that I would invalidate the trust 

22 because I don't think they've been following the rules or 

23 procedures or doing wily-nilly and why now all of a sudden 

24 they want an order from the court and there's the substituted 
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1 parties on that and they haven't done it before. 

2 I'm not sure if that could impact a writ that's up 

3 there. I don't know if that's something that could be a -- a 

4 flaw that maybe the writ would address that could say they 

5 didn't file the formalities or they -- the distribution 

6 trustees, that could be used against him for -- but the fact 

7 that it take -- it speaks it speaks for itself. 

8 11.3 says that Jeffrey Burr has a power given 10 

9 days written notice to the trustee to remove any trustee 

10 within except the trust consultant may not remove the trust 

11 off course and any -- or a successor trustee and to appoint 

12 either one an individual who is an independent trustee 

13 pursuant to IR -- Internal Revenue Code 674. I don't know why 

14 you put that in there if it has no reference on that or 

15 reference 672. Why put it in there? Just say that he has the 

16 right to appoint whoever he wants to a Nevada bank or trust 

17 company to show his trustee. So that's in there. So I'm not 

18 sure the purpose of that being in there. Do you have anything 

19 other--

20 MR. LUSZECK: Yeah, Your -- Your Honor, there are 

21 standard provisions you put in all types of trusts. Jeffrey 

22 Burr testified that it's a grantor trust and that language 

23 would be inapplicable because it's a grantor trust. 

24 THE COURT: Well, basically they just do trust on 
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1 that and they charge these people tens of thousands of dollars 

2 and just use a boilerplate and don't make it individual to the 

3 trust. I mean 

4 MR. LUSZECK: Yeah. Most trusts have boilerplate 

5 language. 

6 THE COURT: Well -- well, then I wouldn't pay that 

7 kind of money for it if they do boilerplate. I'd take it off 

8 line myself, because this is a -- grantor trust shouldn't be 

9 in there, then it shouldn't be there. So to put purpose on 

10 what they -- what he can do. He can appoint him and at the 

11 discretion, whatever, fine. I don't know why they put it in 

12 there. Whoops, it's just standard. Well, you read the whole 

13 document and it's in there. So I don't know why they put it 

14 in there if that's sloppy. Then I should sure as heck 

15 wouldn't pay that kind of money for -- if they put provisions 

16 in there they didn't apply, I figured you would take a 

17 standard one and you would modify it to fit your specific 

18 trust if you're paying that kind of money. But maybe I don't 

19 get it, but to me, you look at it and you do a standard trust 

20 and you modify it to fit the particular trust you're doing. 

21 So I don't know why that language is in there. If 

22 it didn't belong in there, it shouldn't be in there. It 

23 should have been modified for the grantor trust and not even 

24 put that in there because that's been a point of litigation 
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1 five--

2 MR. LUSZECK: Your Honor --

3 THE COURT: -- or six times already. 

4 MR. LUSZECK: The trust specifically states that it 

5 is a grantor trust --

6 THE COURT: Yeah. 

7 MR. LUSZECK: -- and that's what Mr. BUrr testified 

8 to. 

9 THE COURT: Exactly. And why have it in there and 

10 why it states the grantor trust and put language. It doesn't 

11 mean anything on that. To me, it's sloppy. And if it's 

12 sloppy, then so be it. But the fact is if you say it's a 

13 grantor trust and that wouldn't apply, then why put it in 

14 there. So but that's been a point. That's about the fourth 

15 time I've heard that argument. But I'm denying the motion to 

16 substitute and I'm denying the countermotion to appoint 

17 someone. I'm not getting into that stuff. I'm not going to 

18 get into an appoint and appoint someone that is a 

19 non-interested or a non-related party. We've litigated that 

20 several times already. Supreme court makes their ruling that 

21 may resolve the issues. If not, if it comes back to me, then 

22 I'll resolve those issues. But I'm not stepping into this 

23 stuff at this point. 

24 We've been going around and around on that. We've 
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1 had Mr. Burr testify to notice, lack of notice. We've gone 

2 around the block on that. I am denying the motion to 

3 sUbstitute the parties. I'm also denying the opposition there 

4 to -- to -- for me to appoint a specific distribution trustee. 

5 The issue is that I'm going to check the -- the monies we had 

6 that we're going to deal with that to protect the money not 

7 disappearing. That was my concern that if you had someone 

8 that was going to be slick, that the distribution could try to 

9 circumvent the order of this court, I think I got that 

10 protected in this previous orders I did. So I'm not overly 

11 worried about the distribution trustee doing anything 

12 nefarious because the fact we're going to talk about where 

13 that 1,068,000 is. 

14 We're also going to talk about the other property I 

15 said that any property awarded to Ms. Lynita was not to be 

16 dissipated in any manner or any claims against it until the 

17 matter got resolved by the supreme court. So I think that 

18 will protect those issues. And as I said, they've been doing 

19 this several distribution trustees without any involvement 

20 from the court before. So they've been doing it that way. 

21 You might as well keep doing it the way they've been doing it 

22 and let the supreme court decide if there's any need to 

23 address it or not, if that would impact your writ, then there 

24 -- there were some concerns that this was done because that 
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1 was challenged that they didn't. 

2 Basically on one of their challenges to a writ that 

3 the effect that they failed to follow that procedures could be 

4 grounds. But I think I made my divorce decree real quick --

5 real clear. I think I made a specific finding that in the 

6 event that I felt clearly I could invalidate the trust. That 

7 -- because that gave indication where I was going in case 

8 supreme ruled otherwise that I would invalidate the trust 

9 based on the formalities, the -- the concerns about the 

10 conflict of interest I felt and a breach of fiduciary duties 

11 that that could invalidate the trust, but I'll leave that to 

12 the supreme court to decide, because my goal was not to 

13 invalidate trust if I didn't have to if I could achieve the 

14 divorce decree. 

15 Based on what I'll do on that, that we'll protect 

16 everybody from third party creditors because I could see 

17 lawsuits coming out. So that's protect both sides and I think 

18 that was my finding on that. So to restate, I'm denying th~ 

19 motion and the countermotion for me to specifically appoint 

20 distribution trustee or to substitute parties. 

21 As far as another issue we have is do you want to 

22 deal with the funding issue as far as the account that was in 

23 issue? Are you prepared for that issue as far as -- because 

24 we said we would do it by phone conference. They were 
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1 concerned about where the monies at. 

2 MR. LUSZECK: Yeah. 

3 THE COURT: Okay. I figured since we were coming 

4 here, let's see if we can get that done and then we'll look at 

5 the accounting issues, third issues and I think there's also 

6 an issue about the memorandum costs. 

7 MR. KARACSONYI: On the 1.068 million, I know the 

8 Court has our memorandum that we submitted to the court. 

9 THE COURT: You're concerned because Mr. Martin is 

10 the husband of Lana Martin. They had some business 

11 transactions with the trust and some issues going on that. So 

12 he felt it really was 

13 MR. KARACSONYI: They never communicated. When Ms. 

14 -- when Ms. Nelson and the -- and the LSN Trust had accounts 

15 there, they never communicated with her. The relationship 

16 between Mr. Martin and Mr. Nelson has been well established. 

17 We have received these letters. The documents don't even seem 

18 to support the letters that this there was a million that 

19 came five days after. We were told that the monies were 

20 already there. I don't know what that -- what the cause of 

21 that was. But we just don't feel comfortable with it. 

22 The order was that you're supposed to meet and 

23 confer and act in good faith. And I know that counsel and I 

24 had a little disagreement over this, but when I asked them 
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1 please -- look, here are our suggestions. Trust account or 

2 or even David Stephens account who represented Mr. Nelson. We 

3 they came back and said no, we just don't think that's 

4 appropriate and we're not going to negotiate with you. I said 

5 I -- that's not what the judge ordered. I wrote that in an 

6 email. I don't think that's what the judge ordered. 

7 Are you going to -- are you going to defend that 

8 position in front of the court? And they said look, we'll get 

9 back to you and then they said well, we conferred with the ELN 

10 Trust again and they said no. And I said well, we were 

11 looking forward to receiving some -- some alternatives. 

12 So the order was to find a place that everybody was 

13 comfortable with and that was interest bearing. This one 

14 doesn't even have interest. We called around. Bank of Las 

15 Vegas on an investment account and it's important that it's an 

16 investment account because that offer is 1.5 million in 

17 insurance. Will give us .1 to .15 percent on the monies. Now 

18 it's a large sum of monies, so even a nominal percentage like 

19 that will add up over time depending on how long the writ 

20 takes. 

21 But the bottom line is there's no negotiation here. 

22 This is again somebody imposing their will one person and 

23 pointing his will on another person. And this has happened 

24 throughout. And there's no reason that Ms. Nelson who is 
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1 legally entitled to those monies as of this moment shouldn't 

2 feel comfortable that they're in a place where those monies 

3 won't disappear. So we ask that the Court allow for that to 

4 happen and put it in a place, title it in re Nelson or some 

5 way where it doesn't show ownership to either parties so 

6 nobody could try to play any funny business and leverage 

7 leverage against it. And let's put it in a bank that 

8 everybody is comfortable with. 

9 THE COURT: Thank you. Counsel. 

10 MR. LUSZECK: Your Honor, it's interesting how they 

11 always accuse the trust of being controlling, but whenever 

12 they're always demanding that we do things that they want. I 

13 mean, the order specifically stated that if we can't come to 

14 an agreement, the trust should put in a blocked account of its 

15 choosing by such deadline. 

16 MR. KARACSONYI: Temporarily. Where is the word 

17 temporarily? 

18 MR. LUSZECK: It's sure not after that. This is 

19 from your motion. 

20 THE COURT: My minutes say he has transferred the 

21 money into a blocked interest bearing account no later than 

22 Friday, September 6th. The parties shall attempt to reach an 

23 agreement on the specific bank account. And with that front 

24 shall be in placed. If the parties aren't able to reach such 
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1 agreement, the court will make a decision if we have to do a 

2 

3 MR. LUSZECK: Exactly. 

4 THE COURT: -- telephone conference instead of -- if 

5 they're unable to reach an agreement by Friday, September 6th, 

6 the ELN Trust will put -- set funds temporarily into a blocked 

7 account of its choosing and provide documentation to the other 

8 parties that the monies have been transferred as ordered and 

9 we would deal with it later. So the issue is temporarily if 

10 you guys couldn't resolve it. 

11 MR. LUSZECK: Exactly. And that's what we're here 

12 today to talk about. BNY Mellon is a national bank with a 

13 great reputation. They have been provided with a copy of this 

14 Court's orders that the monies are to be placed in a blocked 

15 account. I don't believe -- I can't fathom that BNY Mellon is 

16 going to transfer the money out at the behest of anybody 

17 except this Court and risk liability in the amount of 1. 

18 what is it, over $1,000,000. 

19 THE COURT: Yeah, one million, sixty-eight. 

20 MR. LUSZECK: Can't fathom if they're going to do 

21 that. I don't understand the concern that somehow this money 

22 is going to dissipate. It's just not going to happen. The 

23 money is there, it's in a blocked account. It's not going to 

24 be moved without further order of this Court and she's not 
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1 harmed by this money being kept in there. 

2 She says she's legally entitled to these monies, but 

3 that issue is in front of the supreme court. 

4 THE COURT: The supreme court. 

5 MR. LUSZECK: Right now it's still the assets of the 

6 ELN Trust where it'll remain until the supreme court makes its 

7 decision. There's no harm here with the money staying there 

8 just as there was no harm with the monies staying with Mr. 

9 Stephens. If there had been a -- a good explanation as to why 

10 this money needs to be moved, maybe the ELN Trust would change 

11 its mind. But there's no reason. It's in a blocked account. 

12 It's a well respected, well recognized bank. There's -- I 

13 still haven't heard a reason other than she just doesn't feel 

14 comfortable. The money is there, it's not going to be moved. 

15 I just don't -- still don't understand why there's a need to 

16 move it. 

17 THE COURT: There's no interest albeit, right? It's 

18 a zero interest --

19 MR. LUSZECK: It's my understanding that's being 

20 worked on right now. I mean, this is a -- this is a large 

21 amount of money, Your Honor. 

22 THE COURT: I know. In fact, that's what I'm 

23 worried about. 

24 MR. LUSZECK: Setting up -- setting up account -- we 
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1 were here on a Wednesday. 

2 THE COURT: Yeah. 

3 MR. LUSZECK: This Court ordered us to have it in 

4 account within two days. The ELN Trust did its best efforts 

5 to do that and trying to get everything else in order. 

6 MR. KARACSONYI: It's seven weeks later. 

7 THE COURT: Right, well, yeah, the concern on that 

8 was that -- their concern raised on that the transfer from 

9 Attorney Stephens based on my order, I should have made it 

10 clear with the order on that to transfer the money different 

11 so they could get his money out and not tie it up there. But 

12 the concerns came from that said that that money got 

13 transferred, all of it. And therefore that they could access 

14 to Mr. Nelson getting it through distributions to circumvent 

15 the court order. That was the concern that was raised on that 

16 with the money leaving otherwise. They probably should have 

17 left that at Mr. Stephens' account, at least the 1,068,000 

18 would have probably made it a lot of easier because he was 

19 getting interest on that. It would have made it a lot 

20 clearer, but I think he probably wanted to get out of it as 

21 soon as possible too. So he -- that was where the concern got 

22 raised. 

23 As far as -- any rebuttal you want on that? 

24 
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1 MR. KARACSONYI: No, I mean --

2 THE COURT: You were concerned about the mon~y even 

3 ever got transferred to five days later, is that right? I 

4 think--

5 MR. KARACSONYI: Right. 

6 THE COURT: -- September 11th 

7 MR. KARACSONYI: And then one of it, 70,000 came 

8 from Big Fish, LLC, his brother. The 

9 MR. LUSZECK: Why does that matter? 

10 MR. KARACSONYI: And they said -- they said --

11 THE COURT: Yeah. 

12 MR. LUSZECK; It doesn't matter. 

13 MR. KARACSONYI; Is the brother going to make a 

14 claim--

15 THE COURT: As -- as long as the money is there. 

16 MR. KARACSONYI; -- to the monies later? 

17 MR. LUSZECK: How does that matter? Why would it 

18 matter? 

19 THE COURT: Hey. 

20 MR. LUSZECK: The money was supposed to be 

21 transferred and it was. 

22 THE COURT: Don't argue. Don't argue. He gets to 

23 talk and you get the thing on that. 

24 MR. KARACSONYI: All I'm saying is look, there's --
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1 THE COURT: I don't care as long as the money is 

2 there. 

3 MR. KARACSONYI: Right. 

4 MR. LUSZECK: That's right. 

5 THE COURT: I don't care where it came from. 

6 MR. KAPACSONYI: I mean, look. 

7 THE COURT: Yeah. 

8 MR. KARACSONYI; They tell you oh, well, we're 

9 working on it. It -- it was a rush, but it's been six weeks, 

10 Judge. I mean, we weren't afforded any input. That's the 

11 bottom line. It's a control issue with him and she's not 

12 comfortable with it. She's just not comfortable with it. And 

13 I mean, it's basically -- it's whether they want to say it or 

14 not, it's her money. I mean, that's the order. That's the 

15 outstanding order. They keep saying well, it's -- it's the 

16 ELN Trust. No, they always want to treat everything like it's 

17 still theirs. 

18 Until the supreme court says otherwise, the decision 

19 has been made. So those monies should be transferred to -- to 

20 Bank of Las Vegas. We'll -- we'll accept any bank. Why 

21 haven't they suggested alternatives? They said well, if we 

22 heard her reasons, well you know what, you've heard her 

23 reasons now. And then he says but those aren't valid reasons. 

24 So what reasons are valid reasons and do they get to decide 
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1 that? She has valid concerns. We've set them forward. Now 

2 are they prepared to adjust to do what you ordered in the 

3 first place and that's try to reach an agreement? Name a 

4 bank. Name a bank. Throw one out there. Let's get a dart 

5 board. Put banks on the dart board and throw darts. I mean, 

6 do something, but don't make us get stuck with your decision. 

7 MR. LUSZECK: I don't see what you need to do here, 

8 Your Honor. 

9 MR. KARACSONYI: And Lana's still a party to this 

10 action as of your order today. So we have an interested 

11 party's husband holding the monies. 

12 MR. LUSZECK: In a blocked account. Before it was 

13 the ex attorney of our party. It doesn't matter. It's there. 

14 Before today we didn't even have a different option for them. 

15 Now they're talking about Bank of Las Vegas. They never 

16 provided us with any alternatives. They just objected for it 

17 to be BNY Mellon 

18 THE COURT: You--

19 MR. LUSZECK: It's not hurting anybody for staying 

20 there. Just because she's not comfortable with it. Maybe if 

21 it's transferred to Bank of Las Vegas, my comfortable is not 

22 -- my client is not going to feel comfortable with that. Your 

23 Honor, it's not going to be moved. There'S an order holding 

24 it in place. 
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1 THE COURT: I can see why there was concerns on 

2 that. This Court made specific findings as a credibility and 

3 issues in the divorce decree as the concerns raised by this 

4 Court very specific. The issue is I don't know why it was a 

5 problem just getting a bank, any bank on there. I don't know 

6 why the parties couldn't sit down or read the emails, why he 

7 just couldn't sit down and say well, do Bank of Las Vegas or 

8 Bank of whoever it is on that to put it in a blocked account 

9 with the interest so that noone had quote, control over it. 

10 But apparently, everything in this case is difficult to 

11 achieve. I do understand their frustration. You got Mr. 

12 Martin. He's the president. I imagine he's a straight 

]3 shooting guy on that that EN Mellon is not going to do 

14 anything that would jeopardize their integrity I would guess, 

]5 whether Mr. Martin is a president or not. 

16 But the same token, why not just find a trust 

17 account that handles it and gives interest and puts it in 

18 right now so I don't see -- I don't see you're only 

19 concerned about moving it. I don't see they're over 

20 concerned anyone's going to steal it. But the fact is why 

21 don't they just sit down and just pick a bank that would --

22 wasn't affiliated with you guys, wasn't affiliated with them. 

23 We WOUldn't be here today. It seem like it could have been a 

24 lot easier, especially an interest bearing account. I just 
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1 don't see the -- the issue on that. 

2 I'm going to order to be placed in an interest 

3 bearing account, the Bank of Las Vegas. Should be another 

4 bank you guys want to come up to that gives better interest. 

5 Right now we're talking about interest being .1 percent or 1.5 

6 percent. I think interest bearing should be it should be 

7 put in the name of in re Nelson so that noone can claim 

8 ownership to it until it gets done with it. The whole purpose 

9 was to wait what the supreme court says. If they find 

10 well, adjusted accordingly on a balance, I don't see the big 

11 deal over it either way whether it's an inconvenience to a 

12 party on that. I don't see why it would be in a -- why --

]3 just issued a check, transfer it to Bank of Las Vegas that you 

14 come up with another bank. If you check the Bank of Las Vegas 

15 to see about the percentages --

16 MR. LUSZECK: The first I heard about Bank of --

17 THE COURT: Okay. 

18 MR. LUSZECK: -- Las Vegas was today, Your Honor. 

19 THE COURT: If you can come up with a better 

20 interest, I'm fine, but right now I'm going to order to please 

21 pay -- either place in the -- Bank of Las Vegas or other --

22 let's do the Bank of Las Vegas. Let's set our opposition to 

23 an interest bearing account which would provide either .1 

24 percent, up to .15 percent. If you can find another bank that 
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1 provides a higher return, I'd be glad to do that. But right 

2 now, we're going to order it to be transferred. 48 hours, is 

3 that enough time? Is 48 hours enough time to get it 

4 transferred? I don't know what they have to do with 

5 transfers. 

6 MR. LUSZECK: How much time are we going to have to 

7 look at another bank, Your Honor? Two weeks. 

8 MR. KARACSONYI: Six weeks already. 

9 THE COURT: Well, I figured 48 hours would give you 

10 a chance if you looked at 24 hours to look --

11 MR. KARACSONYI: That's fine with us. 

12 THE COURT: -- look at banks and make -- call around 

13 and--

14 MR. KARACSONYI: We're open. 

15 MR. LUSZECK: But just give him the money. 

16 THE COURT: And make the transfer on that. If you 

17 if you want to give him the money, that's fine too and put 

18 it in their account, I'm fine. 

19 MR. KARACSONYI: We'll put it in our attorney 

20 address account. We're happy to do that. 

21 THE COURT: If you want to that or put it in -- I'm 

22 sure that you may want to talk to counsel before you do that. 

23 We're going to order it to be placed in the -- give you 48 

24 hours to check with other banks if you get a better interest 
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1 and then I think it should be transferred within 24 hours I 

2 would guess. Is that -- I don't know if the transfers take 

3 longer. I don't know what they need to do. So I'm going to 

4 order to be placed in the Bank of Las Vegas by the close of 

5 business on Thursday since Friday is a holiday, a state 

6 holiday at least. I imagine that is the Bank of Las Vegas 

7 a state bank? Because they'll be closed on that day. 

8 MR. DICKERSON: They'll all be closed. 

9 THE COURT: They'll all be closed on fri.· 

10 MR. LUSZECK: Your Honor, and to be quite frank, I 

11 don't know how long it takes to move that type of an amount 

12 anyways. 

13 THE COURT: Yeah. 

14 MR. LUSZECK: I don't know if it's a wire or a 

15 cashier's check. 

16 THE COURT: Yeah. 

17 MR. LUSZECK: I don't know --

18 THE COURT: Yeah. 

19 MR. LUSZECK: -- how long it takes. 

20 THE COURT: Yeah, let US know if there's an issues 

21 on that. 

22 MR. LUSZECK: We'll -- we'll do -- we'll do what we 

23 can, but I'm just telling you I don't know if that's going to 

24 be--
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1 THE COURT: Just let us --

2 MR. LUSZECK: able to happen by Thursday. 

3 THE COURT: Just communicate with the other side so 

4 you don't -- there's any funny business. That's all. 

5 MR. KARACSONYI: Well, but if they initiate the 

6 transfer and it takes a day, that's fine. 

7 THE COURT: Yeah, I don't know 

8 MR. KARACSONYI: We understand that. 

9 THE COURT: Yeah, I don't know how it does it. 

10 MR. KARACSONYI: We just want to see the transfer 

11 initiated. 

12 THE COURT: So give you until Wednesday at 5:00 

13 o'clock to check out other banks and then the money to be 

14 transferred to the Bank of Las Vegas unless it's otherwise 

]5 agreed upon if there's another bank with a better return by 

16 the close of business on Thursday, whatever that day is by 

17 5:00 o'clock. 

18 MR. KARACSONYI: To be clear, the Bank of Las Vegas 

19 has like an investment bank and regular bank. And so -- so it 

20 would be 

21 THE COURT: We want to make sure it's an investment 

22 bank. 

23 MR. KARACSONYI: -- the investment portion of their 

24 investment account. 
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1 THE COURT: It should be an investment account, 

2 because I understand 

3 MR. KARACSONYI: The 1.5 

4 THE COURT: -- those are federally insured for 1.5 

5 million. I don't think the other ones are insured, is that --

6 MR. KARACSONYI: Right. 

7 THE COURT: -- is that your understanding? 

8 MR. KARACSONYI: They're only 250,000 on a 

9 MR. LUSZECK: I don't know, Your Honor. 

10 MR. KARACSONYI: -- regular deposit. 

11 THE COURT; Just make sure they're federally insured 

12 to cover your money. And if you come up with a better 

13 interest you guys agree, fine. 

14 MR. KARACSONYI: Okay. We'll prepare the order and 

15 send it down, Your Honor. 

16 THE COURT: Okay. Make sure it's an investment 

17 account 

18 MR. KARACSONYI; And we'll send it to him. 

19 THE COURT: -- so that it's insured for over the 1.5 

20 million and make sure that one million, sixty-eight is insured 

21 because I think the other one is only insured by a quarter 

22 million, I think. But if you guys come --

23 MR. KARACSONYI: I even -- we'll even help set up 

24 the account, Your Honor. 
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1 THE COURT: Now if you guys --

2 MR. KARACSONYI: Make sure it's set up and titled 

3 correctly. 

4 THE COURT: Now -- prepare the order. And the last 

5 issue I think was an accounting issue, is that where we're --

6 MR. LUSZECK: Yes, Your Honor. 

7 THE COURT: -- we want to --

8 MS. PROVOST: I'll just stand up. Your Honor, this 

9 has actually been carried over I think --

10 MR. LUSZECK: I 

11 MS. PROVOST: -- two times --

12 MR. LUSZECK: Sorry, really quick. 

13 MS. PROVOST: Yeah. 

14 MR. LUSZECK: If this is just the accounting issue, 

15 this doesn't involve me. 

16 MS. PROVOST: You can get out of here if you want 

17 to. 

18 MR. LUSZECK: Can I leave? Is that okay? 

19 THE COURT: Yeah. The other issues on the 

20 attorney's fees that they had done on the cost --

21 MR. LUSZECK: Oh, yes. 

22 THE COURT: -- I'm going to defer that. I'm not 

23 making any findings on that. I think the supreme court 

24 decision might help me if people do have a right to file writs 
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or appeals. Again, if the supreme court came up and made some 

2 findings they thought it was frivolous that would definitely 

3 impact my award of attorney's fees. I know you've asked for 

4 attorney's fees from June 1st through the end of August. And 

5 the current -- I have kept a -- I remember -- I think it was 

6 79,000 and some change and I think 3100 for costs. I would 

7 defer that until I finally get a decision from the supreme 

8 court, because that could impact -- the supreme court may rule 

9 in the trust and say I'm all wet. Then that would justify 

10 their attorney's fees. It may go the other way saying it's 

11 frivolous. 

12 So this time, I'm not going to -- I'm going to defer 

13 any decisions as to fees and costs from the June 1st decision 

14 date currently. 

15 MR. LUSZECK: Okay. 

16 THE COURT: Get that way to --

17 MR. LUSZECK: Thank you. 

18 THE COURT: As far as the accounting, let's see 

19 where we're at with the accounting principals and accounting 

20 issues and see if we can help you out on that. 

21 MS. PROVOST: Thank you, Your Honor. We've --- I 

22 think we've deferred on the accounting issues twice so far so 

23 that both sides would have the to brief it. 

24 THE COURT: To look at them, right. 
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1 MS. PROVOST: It's been briefed by both sides 

2 inclusive of our last brief that was filed in response to the 

3 August accounting that was received on October 1st. And it's 

4 set forth in our brief to you that was filed on October 15th 

5 of this year. The three remaining that we have with the 

6 accountings that have been provided for the years 2010 through 

7 2013 are the insurance costs that are being deducted by Eric 

8 Nelson for the children's insurance, the insurance costs that 

9 were deducted for Lynita Nelson's insurance from 2010 through 

10 the date of the divorce and then the rent that is not being 

11 paid by Eric Nelson for occupancy of 3200 square feet of the 

12 Lindale office building from the time of the divorce to 

13 present which is five months. 

14 That October 15th filing does break down those 

15 numbers at $3200 -- or hundred -- or $1 per square foot, 3200 

16 square feet times five months, that's $16,000 and we've 

17 requested that the -- Mr. Nelson via whatever entity he 

18 proposes pay to Mrs. Nelson the $8,000 that is due for her 

19 share of the Lindale professional property -- or professional 

20 clause of monies. That would be the rent from the time of the 

21 divorce til now for the occupancy that he continues to 

22 maintain and that he continue to be -- make a 3200 payment. 

23 That's reflected on the general ledger as income to Lindale 

24 Professional Plaza. Or if he doesn't want to reflect it, that 
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1 that's just money that's owed to Lynita at this point in time, 

2 because he can't continue to maintain an entire floor of an 

3 office building under the guise of well, but I control the 

4 trusts and I do all the trust work. That's his excuse. His 

5 excuse is I shouldn't have to pay rent because I control the 

6 trusts and I do all the trust work there. And so I shouldn't 

7 have to pay any rent for the -- the 3200 square feet that I 

8 occupy. That's valuable office space. She's entitled to rent 

9 for that. 

10 We've gone over the insurance for the children. 

11 Your Honor specifically ordered during the pendency of the 

12 case that the status quo be maintained. That included being 

13 -- having the insurance paid for the family. And then post 

14 divorce in your decree, you specifically state that it is Eric 

15 who will maintain the minor children's insurance. He 

16 continues to deduct from Lindale Professional Plaza the amount 

17 for the children's insurance and charges half of that to 

18 Lynita. From 2010 through the August 2013 accounting she's 

19 owed $11,675.70 for children's insurance reimbursements. 

20 And then with respect to Lynita's insurance again 

21 during the pendency of the action, you ordered that status quo 

22 be maintained which meant that Eric was to continue to provide 

23 Lynita's health insurance from 2010 until May of 2013, your 

24 decree being issued on June 3rd. The amount that was deducted 
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1 from Lynita's share of Lindale Professional Plaza is 

2 $26,342.88. 

3 We have asked for reimbursement for that. When we 

4 addressed the August accounting that we just received, we 

5 noted that for some reason they prepaid taxes three-quarters 

6 of a year, but not even the right amount of taxes. We don't 

7 understand why they did that. It wasn't something that was 

8 discussed with the co-owner of the property about doing. 

9 There was only one quarterly tax payment owed. We've provided 

10 you with an adjusted balance sheet that reflects that if you 

11 had only paid that one quarterly tax payment that was due as 

12 opposed to some random number, at the end of that month 

13 because of the quarterly tax payment Lynita would owe $231.86 

14 to Lindale Professional Plaza. 

15 So covering the numbers that I went through and 

16 subtracting out the $231.86 that she would owe to Lindale 

17 Professional Plaza, the amount that we believe is owed to Mrs. 

18 Nelson from 2010 to present for her interest in the proceeds 

19 that have been received by Lindale Professional Plaza is 

20 $45,786.72. I mean, the whole purpose of these accounting is 

21 to ensure that as a co-owner Mrs. Nelson is receiving the 

22 monies that are due to her. 

23 If you recall, your initial order, Your Honor, was 

24 that Eric should provide the accountings and write a check for 
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1 what he believe the net amounts were, but that it would be 

2 subject to your review and that you would have the right to 

3 amend that if you found that he had improperly deducted 

4 things. We've set forth what we believe he's improperly 

5 deducted and we're asking for you to make those corrections to 

6 the accounting and ensure that she does actuallY receive what 

7 is due to her as a co-owner of the property. 

8 THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Forsberg. 

9 MS. FORSBERG: Thank you, Your Honor. A couple of 

10 -- let's start with the rent. We'll start in the same order 

11 they went in to try to keep it simple, Your Honor. 

12 THE COURT: Okay. 

13 MS. FORSBERG: It breaks down to $1600 percent month 

14 in managerial fees. She seems to think Ms. Provost seems 

15 to be stating that it's to do with managerial fees of the 

16 trust. The fees are properties we're talking about, Your 

17 Honor. $1600 is roughly less than three times Mr. -- three 

18 hours of Mr. Dickerson's time. So I think that's a reasonable 

19 amount for managerial fees for these properties. We're not 

20 talking just one property as well as you know that. 

21 The other issue is Your Honor so that $1600 a month 

22 if you break down that 3200 divide it in half, that's where I 

23 got the number so the 

24 THE COURT: Okay. 
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1 MS. FORSBERG: -- the Court can follow. I think 

2 that's a reasonable fee. That and then we've accounted for 

3 the accounting fees and -- and for maintenance fees. And 

4 that's the managerial portion. So $1600 is more than 

5 reasonable. I don't think any of us attorneys would be 

6 willing to do -- manage those kind of properties for $1600 a 

7 month, Your Honor. 

8 This -- the next issue Your Honor is health 

9 insurance. It's just comical that she wants all the benefit 

10 of all the rems all the way back but wants none -- no -- no 

11 expenses. That's one of the expenses. You said to maintain 

12 it the way they've been doing it. They've always paid their 

13 their expenses out of their companies. That's how they 

14 have maintained it. But now she wants us to look back as a 

15 Monday morning quarterback and say no, you shouldn't have paid 

16 that way back two, three years ago and you shouldn't have paid 

17 this way back here. 

18 That is unreasonable, Your Honor, at best. I mean, 

19 the fact that she doesn't think she should have to share in 

20 her children's insurance or in her insurance for that period 

21 of time or that the businesses should have, that's ridiculous. 

22 In addition, one of things that's really interesting 

23 in their motions, I guess it's kind of weird because I wrote 

24 it as a response. They didn't really write it as a motion. 
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1 So in their response on the issues of -- they don't want 

2 Garett covered. Most plans you cover the family. It's all 

3 the children. It doesn't matter if you have one or if you 

4 have five. So she wants us to take Garett off and leave him 

5 uncovered. That just seems ridiculous. Their reply repeats 

6 in there that he can cover Garett, but let him cover Garett. 

7 Really? If it's the same cost for Carli and Garett, you want 

8 us to kick the kid off the insurance while he's in college. 

9 The -- the one thing that we know that -- that insurance goes 

10 on now until 26. It used to be 24 before these recent changes 

11 in legislation. He should be able to stay on as long as it 

12 doesn't cost her an extra penny in her half. 

13 They also state Your Honor that it says -- your 

14 decree says maintain insurance. It doesn't show how they 

15 divide the cost. There's a statute specifically about that 

16 that says you divide the costs equally. The Court didn't say 

17 it shouldn't be divided equally. 

18 You know, Mr. Nelson is always -- still maintaining 

19 that that's how it always works in all the decrees, but of 

20 course they want it different. They want all the benefit, 

21 none of the burden of anything. None of the burden of their 

22 children, none of the burden of the cost of -- of her 

23 insurance, nothing, just, you know, pigs get fed, hogs to get 

24 slaughtered. It seems like that's what she wants to do. 
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1 Everything should go to his cost. That's inappropriate, Your 

2 Honor. 

3 The last issue, taxes. How they've always done 

4 taxes is if they could pay the whole amount, they would always 

5 pay the whole amount. But in this case they had to pay one 

6 payment and then all of it, the rest of it. That's where the 

7 balance of the taxes is. This again is Monday morning quarter 

8 backing. You want to go back and say that they shouldn't pay 

9 it this way, it's a tax -- it's taxes. It's not like it's, 

10 you know, a big -- that they paid something that they didn't 

11 need. They have to pay the taxes. They don't have a choice 

12 to pay the taxes. Whether they pay it quarterly or not, 

13 certainly that's a business decision. But as this Court has 

14 repeated over and over and over again, Mr. Nelson has been a 

15 good businessman. He's done this the right way to even 

16 inquire or they wouldn't have any businesses. So I think to 

17 now chastise him for paying the whole taxes, yeah, they paid 

18 it in two payments as much as they could that month and the 

19 other but then punish him, that's unfair, Your Honor. 

20 So I think again the accountings have been accurate. 

21 As you saw, they also backed down on a lot of their things 

22 already, but these are the last three items we have. 1600 is 

23 reasonable for managerial fees. I don't see that Mr. 

24 Dickerson or anybody on any side of this table would do it for 
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1 that on either table. The insurance, it should be split 

2 between the two forensic them and taxes, Your Honor. 

3 MS. PROVOST; Very, very quickly, Your Honor. And 

4 first of all, the -- the concept of backing down, we had 

5 questions about the accounting and asked for information. If 

6 that is causing an issue to ask for information that supports 

7 the statements that are made, then I don't understand how any 

8 business operates, because I know at least in our law practice 

9 I review the books and accounts and if I have que~tions, I 

10 either get an -- a statement from Mr. Dickerson looking at the 

11 -- the questions or I get a statement from our accountant. 

12 But as someone who has access to books and records, as a 

13 co-owner of a business, she should have the right to question 

14 things. When we found that the verification that was provided 

15 coincided with the amounts, we said sure, not a problem 

16 anymore. I think that's how you run a business. 

17 Taxes, she says it's a business decision. Business 

18 decisions require the input and information with a co-owner. 

19 She's a co-owner. He keeps forgetting that. He doesn't to 

20 recall that she's a co-owner or let her have any influence 

21 over it. He says, you know, let him have his $1600 a month as 

22 a managerial fee. 

23 She was willing to manage the property and take care 

24 of the tenants. If you recall, Your Honor, she started doing 
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that. She sent the letters to the tenants and said send the 

2 rents here, send your problems here. she started fixing 

3 things that were broken. She started doing what a building 

4 owner does. She started managing the property. Eric decided 

5 nope, I'm sending them a letter telling them they better not 

6 do it and if they do it, they're going to get in trouble 

7 because I'm the one in charge and I'm the one in control. And 

8 he took it all back. And now he wants to claim give me my 

9 managerial fee for doing so. She's willing to do it. She 

10 tried to do it. He took it away. 

11 Now charging -- charge, you know, Mr. Dickerson's 

12 time. Mr. Dickerson hasn't even charged Lynita the first 

13 time. He's sitting here gratis today. He's been sitting here 

14 gratis at the last couple of hearings. You know, he's -- he 

15 -- I don't see where his time has anything to do with it. 

16 Health insurance, they talk about well, he has 

17 always paid the insurance from all of the companies from all 

18 of the companies. But now that he has to start paying Lynita 

19 for her share of the Lindale Professional Plaza, now all of a 

20 sudden the insurance is only coming from Lindale Professional 

21 Plaza, not from all of the companies. Which by the way for 

22 the last four years at least he's kept a hundred percent of 

23 all of the profits of all of the companies. So it's not 

24 farfetched that he should have to pay for the cost of the 
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1 insurance as he's the only one that was getting anything as 

2 she's gotten nothing, no temporary support, no share of the 

3 business income, nothing. 

4 And finally, two things. The decree says the 

5 argument that the decree says to maintain insurance, but it 

6 doesn't say who has to pay for it. Come on, Your Honor. This 

7 -- this isn't your first decree that you've written. This 

8 isn't your first time around the block. It's not mine. It's 

9 not Ms. Forsberg's. I understand the Nelsons have never been 

10 divorced, but other than the Nelsons, I think everyone else 

11 in this room knows what it means when it says that the party 

12 is required to maintain the insurance. That includes paying 

13 for the insurance, Your Honor. 

14 And finally, you know, these attacks about Garett 

15 and that she's trying to make it so Garett is uninsured and 

16 she can't -- you know, she wants to toss Garett off the 

17 insurance. She's never once said toss Garett off the 

18 insurance. What she said is Garett's an adult, like it or 

19 not. As an adult child, it's a moral decision whether either 

20 of these parties just chooses to insure him. If it costs Mr. 

21 Nelson nothing more to keep Garett on the insurance, by all 

22 means, keep Garett on the insurance. But don't make Lynita 

23 pay for something that she's not required to do. Your Honor's 

24 decree was that Eric is to maintain the insurance. That 
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1 includes paying for it. Obviously, you only have jurisdiction 

2 over the order for the minor child which is Carli and that is 

3 the point that we made in all of our pleadings. 

4 THE COURT: As far as I think their -- that the 

5 management fees, I think there is some entitlement to 

6 management fees. What's a fair amount? I don't know. I 

7 never -- I'll have to look at those accountings and see what 

8 the issues come down to and what the management fee, how much 

9 he charge an hour and how many hours are -- are spent on that. 

10 That's the concern on that. I never get good documents. I 

11 just get 

12 MS. PROVOST: That's what the management fees that 

13 he's deducting to pay to Rochelle McGowan already are, Your 

14 Honor. 

15 MS. FORSBERG: Those are accounting fees. Those are 

16 different than managerial fees. 

17 THE COURT: The exact so I'm going to familiarize 

18 myself with those documents again. I'm going to look at those 

19 numbers, but I think there is definitely entitled to proceeds 

20 for rent. People don't get free rent. They don't get free 

21 rent from day one. That's -- and I think a dollar a square 

22 foot is very reasonable. And that's probably the bottom line 

23 of square footage now. I don't know what the economy how it's 

24 fluctuated, but a dollar a square foot is very fair and 
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1 reasonable. I think she's entitled to the rental for that 

2 time forward and you're entitled to some type of management 

3 fees for managing. 

4 What's fair and reasonable? I'll have to look at 

5 those numbers to see whether or not Ms. Lynita is willing to 

6 do the management. Of course the letters went out, send that 

7 and you counter with letters don't do that. So instead of 

8 just sitting there and she's a co-owner. And of course you 

9 guys aren't going to be able to co-own businesses because of 

10 where we're at today. Unfortunately, we can't said to move 

11 forward on that and that's just the way it is until the 

12 supreme court rules. 

13 But the fact is on the health insurance and for the 

14 children on that, it was my intention that Mr. Nelson pay for 

15 the minors as far as the spouse. I need to look at that to 

16 see what time frame to make sure that those time frames jive 

17 with my decisions on that to see how far back would be far to 

18 go back. But I did maintain the status quo so that we 

19 consider those funds. So I think there needs to be some 

20 adjustments. Go through the numbers and write out an order 

21 with specific numbers, but there's no doubt you're entitled to 

22 some type of credit for the health insurance. Whether it's 

23 the full amount that's requested or not, I'm not sure if 

24 that's fair and just, but I'm going to look at those numbers 
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1 and go through from different dates and see what would be 

2 best. 

3 Right now you're looking at a -- I think you said 

4 11,675 was your request for the children. 26,342.88 was for 

5 Ms. Lynita's and that there was the other amount, the 8,000 

6 was was the --

7 MS. PROVOST: The 8,000, Your Honor, was with 

8 respect to the -- the rents for the last five months for 

9 Eric's space. 

10 THE COURT: Because that came out from the half of 

11 the 16,000 and --

12 MS. PROVOST: Exactly. 

13 THE COURT: -- 3200 --

14 MS. PROVOST: Uh-huh (affirmative). 

15 THE COURT: -- square feet. That has $1 came up to 

16 16,000 and half of that for the five months as a partial owner 

17 would be the 8,000 for the rent which came out to the 45,000. 

18 MS. FORSBERG: It was 1600 percent month, Your 

19 Honor. 

20 THE COURT: Yeah. And--

21 MS. FORSBERG: Managerial fee. 

22 THE COURT: And cut that half to the -- all right. 

23 Let me take those on and I'll turn this around quickly for 

24 you, because I want to try to get these decisions out there 
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1 because I get backlogged with things going on there, so I want 

2 to look at those numbers again to refresh my memory. I got to 

3 look at those accounting numbers again to be honest with you 

4 and go through all those numbers again, because I didn't 

5 really review those before this hearing to be honest. 

6 MS. PROVOST: When you issue the specific order 

7 order, Your Honor, we do request a due by date, a -- a direct 

8 payment date, because otherwise --

9 THE COURT: Try to get it done, otherwise --

10 MS. PROVOST: if -- if it's left in limbo, we 

11 don't know when we'll ever receive it. 

12 MS. FORSBERG: That's presuming there is an amount, 

13 so --

14 MR. KARACSONYI: Your Honor, just --

15 THE COURT: Yes. 

16 MS. FORSBERG: We already have one person arguing 

17 this. Are we going to have three of us arguing it again? 

18 MR. KARACSONYI: No. No. This is another issue. 

19 You had eluded to it earlier. I know it's not on for hearing, 

20 but I don't want to waste the parties' time and -- and monies 

21 and we know how difficult it is the disagreements between the 

22 parties. I had asked Ms. at the last hearing Mr. Nelson 

23 had said that some of the properties may have been leveraged 

24 and you ordered them to unleverage it. I had sent an email to 
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1 Ms. Forsberg approximately the time of the transfer of the 

2 the joined funds about September 6th asking her to provide 

3 proof of whatever was leveraged and that things were 

4 unleveraged. 

5 I haven't received a response. I prefer not to file 

6 a motion and cost the parties money just to find out that an 

7 order was complied with. If we could just have a date for 

8 Eric as investment trustee --

9 MS. FORSBERG: Actually, Your Honor, I believe 

10 they've done that in request for production of documents. You 

11 guys did that, so 

12 MR. KARACSONYI: No, that was actually -- that's 

13 actually the request for production of documents. If--

14 MS. FORSBERG: That's not due yet. 

15 MR. KARACSONYI: They reference only to Wyoming 

16 Downs. That's for the upcoming trial. 

17 THE COURT: For the upcoming hearing. 

18 MR. KARACSONYI: Yeah, onCe she reads those she'll 

19 see that. But In the meantime, if we could just -- if we 

20 could just get an order on that, that would be great. Just so 

21 we have a time frame for them to show us the proof of that so 

22 we don't 

23 

24 

MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, again 

MR. KARACSONYI: have to file a motion. 
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1 Otherwise, I'm more than happy to file the motion if the Court 

2 thinks that's necessary. 

3 MS. FORSBERG: In response, Your Honor, a couple of 

4 issues. First of all, we should have -- that should have been 

5 something that was brought up with Mr. Luszeck here of course. 

6 THE COURT: Yeah. 

7 MS. FORSBERG: But the other issue is this, Your 

8 Honor, is that you ordered him to unwind it. He's unwinding 

9 it. That's what you told him to do. He had told you what he 

10 had done, he's unwinding it. 

11 MR. KARACSONYI: Okay. Well, a different issue. 

12 MS. FORSBERG: But they want to go through more 

13 costs and more fees and run up more fees --

14 MR. KARACSONYI: I'm not trying to. 

]5 MS. FORSBERG: -- and that's ridiculous. 

16 THE COURT: Exactly. Exactly. What are we 

17 unwinding, any other properties? 

18 MR. NELSON: Yes, sir. I'm -- I'm unwinding it. 

19 I'm -- I'm leveraging my house, I'm selling all my properties 

20 in Arizona to unleverage everything and payoff all the 

21 liabilities with source that I was -- you know, I'm -- I'm 

22 trying to cleanup the lawsuits that I got stuck with and --

23 but it's going to be done. It's -- it's on a timely fashion. 

24 All the homes are listed. The payoffs are going accordingly 
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1 and our next update we're think we're back in here in 

2 December, hopefully I can give you a full report that 

3 everything is cleared up. 

4 THE COURT: Is the property that you got 

5 specifically that you had concerns about? I know he said he 

6 had fund that and he was going to kind of wheel and deal and 

7 get out of --

8 MR. KARACSONYI: Well, that's so vague. I mean, I 

9 -- I -- we just wanted to know which properties you leveraged, 

10 how much you leveraged them for and what are you doing to 

11 unwind them. I mean, look. If they want us to file the 

12 motion, we'll be back in here and then we're going to request 

13 attorney's fees, because we just want to know that an order 

14 has been complied with. 

15 MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, I believe we're back here 

16 in December, so we'll bring you all the --

17 MR. NELSON: I'll give you a status update at that 

18 time. 

19 MS. PROVOST: Are you -- are you referring to his 

20 custody motion? 

21 MS. FORSBERG: No. No. No. That's a different 

22 department. 

23 

24 

MR. NELSON: January. 

MS. PROVOST: Well, I will ask Your Honor, Mr. 
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